# CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board** held on Tuesday, 25th January, 2022 in the The Ballroom, Sandbach Town Hall, High Street, Sandbach, CW11 1AX

## **PRESENT**

## **Voting Members**

Councillor Carol Bulman, Cheshire East Council Councillor Sam Corcoran (Chairman), Cheshire East Council Councillor Jill Rhodes, Cheshire East Council Helen Charlesworth-May, Cheshire East Council Denise Frodsham, Cheshire East Integrated Care Partnership Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health

# **Non-Voting Members**

Deborah Woodcock, Cheshire East Council

# **Associate Non-Voting Members**

Councillor Janet Clowes, Cheshire East Council

#### **Cheshire East Officers and Others**

Mark Bayley, Cheshire East 0-25 SEND Partnership Mark Groves, Healthwatch Cheshire Guy Kilminster, Corporate Manager Health Improvement Karen Shuker, Democratic Services Officer

#### 39 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Louise Barry (Healthwatch Cheshire), Superintendent Peter Crowcroft (Cheshire Constabulary), Chris Hart (Cheshire East Social Action Partnership), Steven Michael (Cheshire East Health and Care Place Partnership), Dr Lorraine O'Donnell (Cheshire East Council), Jayne Traverse (Cheshire East Council), Clare Watson (Cheshire CCG), Caroline Whitney (CVS Cheshire East), Dr Andrew Wilson (Cheshire CCG).

Mark Groves (Healthwatch Cheshire) attended as a substitute.

## **40 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

Councillor S Corcoran declared a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of his wife being a GP.

#### 41 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2021 be confirmed as correct record.

#### 42 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no public speakers.

## 43 SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY (SEND) UPDATE

The Board considered a report detailing progress with the work of the Cheshire East 0-25 SEND Partnership and the development of the SEND Strategy, 2021-24.

The Board welcomed the report and agreed that they would like an annual update and would like consideration given to aligning the report with the Children & Families Committee.

## **RESOLVED that:-**

- (1) The update relating to the SEND Strategy, 2-21-24 and associated action plan be noted.
- (2) Progress made against the vision, values and actions contained in the strategy be provided in an annual report.

## 44 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

The Board considered the Public Health Annual Report for 2020/21.

The report provided an overview of the challenges faced by the Public Health Team, and the milestones achieved during the pandemic. It also highlighted the inequalities in Cheshire East and the evidence supporting partnership working to create healthier lifestyles.

The Board welcomed the comprehensive report and provided comments and questions in respect of the following:

- How the Board could help promote health and wellbeing through green spaces;
- Could working in partnership with planning on the impact of new housing designs improve the quality of life;
- Whether there were specific reasons behind the high figures for deaths from circulatory diseases in Audlem and Middlewich.

It was agreed that more detailed information on circulatory diseases would be provided outside the meeting.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Director of Public Health Annual Report be noted.

## 45 TEST, TRACE, CONTAIN, ENABLE UPDATE

Dr Matt Tyrer gave an update on the Test, Trace, Contain and Enable system.

It was reported that following the recent National Policy updates there would be communications issued to support any changes. It was reported that since the last Health and Wellbeing Board there had been a mixed picture in respect of covid cases which had seen the highest rate in Cheshire East since the pandemic began due to the Omicron variant.

The rate of cases in the older age group had fallen, but there had been an increase in the primary and secondary age groups. It was reported that this was the overall picture nationally.

Testing was still being offered to communities, along with help to support local businesses, and the roll out of the vaccination programme continued.

#### **RESOLVED: -**

That the update be noted.

## **46 CHESHIRE EAST PLACE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE**

This item and the Cheshire East Integrated Care Partnership update were considered together.

The Board noted that there had been a delay in the establishment of Integrated Care Systems (ICS) from 1 April 2022 to 1 July 2022, however this had provided additional time to work through plans, proposals and supporting structures.

The Executive Group continued to meet weekly to ensure that it covered all the required elements for the successful transition towards an Integrated Care System and enable open discussion and strategic thinking on the direction of travel for Cheshire East Place. The most important factors were to maintain the momentum supporting the strategic vision and associated work whilst identifying who would have the capability to deliver that moving forward.

The Board were informed that the Executive Group were supported by three dedicated workstreams focussed on Integrated Planning, Finance and Governance. These covered areas such as overarching system architecture, decision-making, delegations to scope of services and the interface between Cheshire East Place and the ICS and Integrated Care Board moving forward.

This would enable the development of appropriate governance arrangements that would support collaborative decision making and establish clear lines of reporting for the Cheshire East Place Partnership arrangements around performance, accountability, and assurance in readiness for the implementation of the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System after 1 July 2022.

## **RESOLVED**

That the update be noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.52 pm

Councillor S Corcoran (Chair)